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ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION

FORM 10-Q
GLOSSARY OF SELECTED ABBREVIATED TERMS*
Abbreviated Term Defined Term
0% Notes 0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2027

1.00% Notes

1.625% Notes

3.875% Notes

ADAS

AEC

Amended Credit Agreement

Amended and Restated SIP
ASU

BEPS

CCD

Commission or SEC
ESPP

Exchange Act
Fairchild

FASB

IoT

IP

LIBO Rate

Quantenna

Revolving Credit Facility
RSU

SiC

SoC

Securities Act

Term Loan "B" Facility

1.00% Convertible Senior Notes due 2020
1.625% Convertible Senior Notes due 2023
3.875% Senior Notes due 2028

Advanced driver-assistance systems
Automotive Electronics Council

Credit Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2016, as subsequently amended, by and among the Company, as borrower,
the several lenders party thereto, Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as administrative agent and collateral
agent, and certain other parties, providing for the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan “B” Facility

ON Semiconductor Corporation Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan, as amended
Accounting Standards Update

Base Erosion and Profit Shifting

Charge-coupled device

Securities and Exchange Commission

ON Semiconductor Corporation 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

Fairchild Semiconductor International, Inc.

Financial Accounting Standards Board

Internet-of-things

Intellectual property

A base rate per annum equal to the London Interbank Offered Rate as administered by the International Exchange
Benchmark Administration

Quantenna Communications, Inc.

A $1.97 billion revolving credit facility created pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreement
Restricted stock unit

Silicon Carbide

System on chip

Securities Act of 1933, as amended

A $2.4 billion term loan "B" facility created pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreement

* Terms used, but not defined, within the body of the Form 10-Q are defined in this Glossary.
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Item 1. Financial Statements (unaudited)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Deferred tax assets
Other assets

Total assets

PART I: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except share and per share data)
(unaudited)

Liabilities, Non-Controlling Interest and Stockholders’ Equity

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred tax liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

ON Semiconductor Corporation stockholders’ equity:

Common stock ($0.01 par value, 1,250,000,000 shares authorized, 599,738,476 and 570,766,439 issued, 430,824,004 and

411,842,629 outstanding, respectively)
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated earnings

Less: Treasury stock, at cost: 168,914,472 and 158,923,810 shares, respectively
Total ON Semiconductor Corporation stockholders’ equity

Non-controlling interest
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

October 1, December 31,
2021 2020

$ 1,389.2 $ 1,080.7
720.0 676.0
1,327.6 1,251.4
205.0 176.0
3,641.8 3,184.1
2,427.8 2,512.3
1,662.7 1,663.4
390.3 469.0
382.1 429.0
436.0 410.2
$ 8,940.7 $ 8,668.0
$ 599.3 $ 572.9
641.8 570.0
203.0 531.6
1,444.1 1,674.5
2,910.5 2,959.7
46.8 57.3
394.9 418.4
4,796.3 5,109.9
6.0 5.7
4,498.5 4,133.1
(48.6) (57.6)
2,009.2 1,425.5
(2,341.4) (1,968.2)
4,123.7 3,538.5
20.7 19.6
4,144.4 3,558.1
$ 8,940.7 $ 8,668.0

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in millions, except per share data)

(unaudited)
Quarters Ended Nine Months Ended
October 1, October 2, October 1, October 2,
2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenue $ 1,7421 $ 1,317.3 $ 4,893.7 $ 3,808.7
Cost of revenue (exclusive of amortization shown below) 1,021.3 876.1 3,011.6 2,590.5
Gross profit 720.8 441.2 1,882.1 1,218.2
Operating expenses:
Research and development 154.5 156.1 494.4 483.2
Selling and marketing 68.4 65.3 223.4 207.7
General and administrative 75.7 62.2 221.3 196.3
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets 24.7 29.6 74.5 91.0
Restructuring, asset impairments and other charges, net 1.7) 9.0 58.3 58.0
Intangible asset impairment — — 2.9 1.3
Total operating expenses 321.6 322.2 1,074.8 1,037.5
Operating income 399.2 119.0 807.3 180.7
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense (31.9) (42.2) (98.4) (126.6)
Interest income 0.5 0.9 1.1 4.3
Loss on debt refinancing and prepayment — — (26.2) —
Gain on divestiture of business 10.2 — 10.2 —
Other income (expense) (5.8) 0.4 (2.4) (2.3)
Other income (expense), net (27.0) (40.9) (115.7) (124.6)
Income before income taxes 372.2 78.1 691.6 56.1
Income tax (provision) benefit (61.8) 83.1 (106.8) 90.5
Net income 310.4 161.2 584.8 146.6
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interest (0.7) (0.6) (1.1) (1.4)
Net income attributable to ON Semiconductor Corporation $ 309.7 $ 160.6 $ 583.7 $ 145.2
Comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net income $ 3104 $ 161.2 $ 5848 §$ 146.6
Foreign currency translation adjustments (0.3) 0.6 (2.8) 1.1
Effects of cash flow hedges 3.9 3.6 11.8 (10.2)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 3.6 4.2 9.0 9.1)
Comprehensive income 314.0 165.4 593.8 137.5
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interest (0.7) (0.6) (1.1) (1.4)
Comprehensive income attributable to ON Semiconductor Corporation $ 3133 $ 1648 $ 592.7 $ 136.1
Net income per share of common stock attributable to ON Semiconductor
Corporation:
Basic 0.72 039 $ 1.38 $ 0.35
Diluted 0.70 0.38 $ 132 $ 0.35
Weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding:
Basic 430.6 410.8 423.8 410.5
Diluted 440.7 418.3 443.1 414.4

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Balance at July 2, 2021

Shares issued pursuant to the ESPP
RSUs and stock grant awards issued
Payment of tax withholding for RSUs
Share-based compensation
Comprehensive income

Balance at October 1, 2021

Balance at December 31, 2020
Stock option exercises

Shares issued pursuant to the ESPP
RSUs and stock grant awards issued

Shares issued for warrants exercise - 1.00% Notes

Partial settlement - 1.625% Notes

Partial settlement of warrants - 1.625% Notes
Partial settlement of bond hedges - 1.625% Notes

Equity component - 0% Notes

Warrants and bond hedges, net - 0% Notes
Tax impact of convertible notes, warrants and bond hedges,

net

Payment of tax withholding for RSUs
Share-based compensation
Comprehensive income

Balance at October 1, 2021

Balance at July 3, 2020

Stock option exercises

Shares issued pursuant to the ESPP
RSUs and stock grant awards issued
Payment of tax withholding for RSUs
Share-based compensation
Comprehensive income

Balance at October 2, 2020

Balance at December 31, 2019

Stock option exercises

Shares issued pursuant to the ESPP
RSUs and stock grant awards issued
Payment of tax withholding for RSUs
Share-based compensation
Repurchase of common stock
Comprehensive (loss) income

Balance at October 2, 2020

ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in millions, except share data)

(unaudited)
Common Stock Treasury Stock
Number of AtPar Additional Paid- Acc lated Other Acc lated Non-Controlling

shares Value in Capital Comprehensive Loss Earnings Number of shares At Cost Interest Total Equity
599,397,171 $ 6.0 $ 4,470.3 $ (52.2) $ 1,699.5 (168,864,960) $ (2,339.2) $ 200 $ 3,804.4
171,146 — 5.5 — — — — — 5.5
170,159 = = = = = = = =
— — — — — (49,512) 22 — .2)
— — 22.7 — — — — — 22.7
— — — 3.6 309.7 — — 0.7 314.0
599,738,476 $ 60 $ 44985 $ (48.6) $ 2,009.2 (168,914,472) $ (2,341.4) $ 207 $ 4,144.4
570,766,439 $ 57 § 4,133.1 $ (57.6) $ 1,425.5 (158,923,810) $ (1,968.2) $ 19.6 $ 3,558.1
4,000 — — — — — — — —
570,732 — 17.6 — — — — — 17.6
2,782,381 — — — — — — — —
13,424,951 0.1 0.1) = — — _ _ _
5,425,239 0.1 (141.7) — — — — — (141.6)
6,764,734 0.1 (0.1) — — — — — —
— — 339.0 — — (9,120,930) (339.0) — —
== == 136.6 - = - - - 136.6
— — (66.5) — — — — — (66.5)
= = 6.5 = = = = = 6.5
— — — — — (869,732) (34.2) — (34.2)
= = 74.1 = = = = = 74.1
— — — 9.0 583.7 — — 11 593.8
599,738,476 $ 6.0 $ 4,4985 $ (48.6) $ 2,009.2 (168,914,472) $ (2,341.4) $ 207 $ 4,144.4
569,611,277 $ 57 $ 3,854.6 $ (67.6) $ 1,175.9 (158,801,656) $ (1,732.5) $ 232 $ 3,259.3
3,125 — — — — — — — —
342,461 — 5.5 — — — — — BB
89,132 — — — — — — — —
— — — — — (24,435) 0.5) = (0.5)
— — 17.5 — — — — — 17.5
— — — 4.2 160.6 — — 0.6 165.4
570,045,995 $ 57 § 3,8776 $ (63.4) $ 1,336.5 (158,826,091 $ (1,733.0) $ 238 $ 3,447.2
565,562,607 $ 57§ 3,809.5 $ (543) $ 1,191.3 (154,249,943) $ (1,650.5) $ 224 % 3,324.1
3,125 — — — — — — — —
1,496,264 — 16.9 — — — — — 16.9
2,983,999 = = = = = = = =
— — — — — (964,735) (17.1) — 17.1)
— — 51.2 — — — — — 51.2
— — — — — (3,611,413) (65.4) — (65.4)
— — - 9.1) 145.2 — — 1.4 137.5
570,045,995 $ 57 % 3,877.6 $ (63.4) $ 1,336.5 (158,826,091) $ (1,733.0) $ 238 $ 3,447.2

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

(unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Loss (gain) on sale and disposal of fixed assets
Gain on divestiture of business
Loss on debt refinancing and prepayment
Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs
Share-based compensation
Non-cash interest on convertible notes
Non-cash asset impairment charges
Intangible asset impairment charges
Change in deferred tax balances
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities (exclusive of divestiture):
Receivables
Inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Deposits and proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Deposits utilized (made) for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Divestiture of business, net of cash transferred
Purchase of business, net of cash acquired
Purchase of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from sale or maturity of available-for-sale securities
Settlement of purchase price from previous acquisition
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds for the issuance of common stock under the ESPP
Payment of tax withholding for RSUs
Repurchase of common stock
Issuance and borrowings under debt agreements
Reimbursement of debt issuance costs
Payment of debt issuance costs
Repayment of borrowings under debt agreements
Payment for purchase of bond hedges
Proceeds from issuance of warrants
Payments related to prior acquisition
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
Beginning cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (Note 6)
Ending cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (Note 6)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

Nine Months Ended
October 1, October 2,
2021 2020

584.8 146.6
456.4 471.3
2.3 (1.8)
(10.2) —
26.2 —
8.0 9.1
74.1 51.2
17.6 29.4
10.8 14.2
— 1.3
39.5 (149.1)
0.2 5.3
(38.1) (21.5)
(71.5) (52.1)
(32.0) (27.2)
25.6 3.4
55.6 (13.0)
6.1 16.8
1,155.4 483.9
(275.0) (267.2)
6.6 1.5
(21.5) 2.3
3.4 —
— 4.5)
(43.8) —
2.8 —
— 26.0
(327.5) (241.9)
18.5 17.8
(34.2) (17.1)
— (65.4)
787.3 1,858.0
2.7 —
3.8) 2.2)
(1,218.8) (1,264.6)
(160.3) —
93.8 —
(3.0) 8.3)
(517.8) 518.2
(1.0) 0.4
309.1 760.6
1,081.5 894.2
1,390.6 $ 1,654.8
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ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)

Note 1: Background and Basis of Presentation

"o "o "o

ON Semiconductor Corporation, together with its wholly and majority-owned subsidiaries ("onsemi," "we," "us," "our" or the "Company"), uses a thirteen-
week fiscal quarter accounting period for the first three fiscal quarters of each year, with the third quarter of 2021 having ended on October 1, 2021 and
each fiscal year ending on December 31. The quarters ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020 each contained 91 days. The nine months ended
October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020 contained 274 and 276 days, respectively. As of October 1, 2021, the Company was organized into the following
three operating and reportable segments: the Power Solutions Group ("PSG"), the Advanced Solutions Group ("ASG") and the Intelligent Sensing Group
("ISG").

The accompanying unaudited financial statements as of and for the quarter and nine months ended October 1, 2021 have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("GAAP"). Accordingly, the unaudited financial statements do not include all of
the information and footnotes required by GAAP for audited financial statements. The balance sheet as of December 31, 2020 was derived from the
Company's audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by GAAP for audited financial statements. In the opinion of the
Company's management, the interim information includes all adjustments, which include normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of
the results for the interim periods. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts to conform to current-period presentation. The footnote
disclosures related to the interim financial information included herein are also unaudited. Such financial information should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2020 included in the Company's Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020, which was filed with the SEC on February 16, 2021 (the "2020 Form 10-K").

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Management
evaluates these estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis and bases its estimates on experience, current and expected future conditions, third-party
evaluations and various other assumptions that management believes are reasonable under the circumstances. Significant estimates have been used by
management in conjunction with the following: (i) future payouts for customer incentives and amounts subject to allowances and returns; (ii) valuation and
obsolescence relating to inventories; (iii) variable and share-based compensation; and (iv) measurement of valuation allowances against deferred tax assets
and evaluations of uncertain tax positions. Additionally, during periods where it becomes applicable, significant estimates will be used by management in
determining the future cash flows used to assess and test for impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill and in assumptions used in connection with
business combinations. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions used in the consolidated financial statements.
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ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
(unaudited)

Note 2: Revenue and Segment Information

The Company is organized into three operating and reportable segments consisting of PSG, ASG and ISG. These segments represent the Company’s view
of the business, and its gross profit is used to evaluate the performance of the Company’s segments, the progress of major initiatives and the allocation of
resources. Gross profit is exclusive of the amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets.

Revenue and gross profit for the Company’s operating and reportable segments are as follows (in millions):

PSG ASG ISG Total

For the quarter ended October 1, 2021:

Revenue from external customers $ 892.1 $ 6135 $ 236.5 $ 1,742.1

Gross profit $ 346.0 $ 280.1 $ 947 $ 720.8
For the quarter ended October 2, 2020:

Revenue from external customers $ 647.4 $ 4946 $ 1753 % 1,317.3

Gross profit (1) $ 1942 $ 1912 $ 55.8 $ 441.2
For the nine months ended October 1, 2021:

Revenue from external customers $ 2,485.7 $ 1,752.6 $ 6554 $ 4,893.7

Gross profit $ 906.8 $ 739.2 $ 236.1 $ 1,882.1
For the nine months ended October 2, 2020:

Revenue from external customers $ 1,889.7 $ 1,388.4 $ 530.6 $ 3,808.7

Gross profit (1) $ 549.2 $ 5004 $ 168.6 $ 1,218.2

(1) Beginning in the first quarter of 2021, the Company started including unallocated manufacturing costs as part of segment operating results to
determine segment gross profit. As a result, the prior-period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current-period presentation.

The Company had one customer, a distributor, whose purchases accounted for approximately 14% and 13% of the Company's total revenue for the quarter
and nine months ended October 1, 2021.
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ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
(unaudited)

Revenue for the Company's operating and reportable segments disaggregated into geographic locations based on sales billed from the respective country
and sales channels are as follows (in millions):

Quarter Ended October 1, 2021

PSG ASG ISG Total

Geographic Location

Singapore $ 2854 $ 2193 $ 393 $ 544.0
Hong Kong 281.8 152.2 53.0 487.0
United Kingdom 145.0 86.8 414 273.2
United States 115.8 74.3 48.6 238.7
Other 64.1 80.9 54.2 199.2
Total $ 892.1 $ 6135 $ 2365 $ 1,742.1
Sales Channel

Distributors $ 6442 $ 3556 $ 149.0 $ 1,148.8
Direct Customers 247.9 257.9 87.5 593.3
Total $ 892.1 $ 613.5 $ 236.5 $ 1,742.1

Nine Months Ended October 1, 2021

PSG ASG ISG Total

Geographic Location

Singapore $ 833.0 $ 647.8 $ 105.2 $ 1,586.0
Hong Kong 738.9 397.0 142.6 1,278.5
United Kingdom 435.1 254.3 129.2 818.6
United States 299.2 220.9 128.5 648.6
Other 179.5 232.6 149.9 562.0
Total $ 2,485.7 $ 1,752.6 $ 655.4 $ 4,893.7
Sales Channel

Distributors $ 1,779.2  $ 988.8 $ 4107 $ 3,178.7
Direct Customers 706.5 763.8 244.7 1,715.0
Total $ 2,485.7 $ 1,752.6 $ 655.4 $ 4,893.7

10
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ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

(unaudited)
Quarter Ended October 2, 2020
PSG ASG ISG Total

Geographic Location

Singapore $ 2365 % 177.1  $ 283 % 441.9
Hong Kong 187.8 103.4 43.3 334.5
United Kingdom 98.6 71.0 37.2 206.8
United States 73.0 68.4 46.2 187.6
Other 51.5 74.7 20.3 146.5
Total $ 6474 $ 4946 $ 1753 $ 1,317.3
Sales Channel

Distributors $ 436.3 $ 2558 $ 873 $ 779.4
Direct Customers 211.1 238.8 88.0 537.9
Total $ 647.4 $ 4946 $ 1753 $ 1,317.3

Nine Months Ended October 2, 2020
PSG ASG ISG Total

Geographic Location

Singapore $ 6742 $ 507.1 $ 1083 $ 1,289.6
Hong Kong 570.2 291.0 112.8 974.0
United Kingdom 279.5 190.2 105.0 574.7
United States 201.9 209.2 112.8 523.9
Other 163.9 190.9 91.7 446.5
Total $ 1,889.7 $ 1,388.4 $ 530.6 $ 3,808.7
Sales Channel

Distributors $ 1,259.5 $ 700.7 $ 2945 % 2,254.7
Direct Customers 630.2 687.7 236.1 1,554.0
Total $ 1,889.7 $ 1,388.4 $ 530.6 $ 3,808.7

The Company operates in various geographic locations. Sales to customers have little correlation with the location of manufacturers. Accordingly, the
Company does not present operating profit by geographical location.

The Company does not discretely allocate assets to its operating segments, nor does management evaluate operating segments using discrete asset
information. The Company’s consolidated assets are not specifically ascribed to its individual reportable segments. Rather, assets used in operations are
generally shared across the Company’s operating and reportable segments.

11



Table of Contents
ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
(unaudited)

Property, plant and equipment, net, by geographic location, is summarized as follows (in millions):

As of
December 31,
October 1, 2021 2020
United States $ 7093 $ 686.6
South Korea 444.0 455.5
Philippines 352.9 386.6
China 213.6 229.6
Japan 205.0 209.3
Czech Republic 204.5 216.1
Malaysia 181.0 190.2
Other 117.5 138.4
Total $ 2,427.8 $ 2,512.3

Note 3: Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Pending adoption:
ASU 2020-06 - Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity ("ASU 2020-06")

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-06, which simplifies the guidance on the issuer’s accounting for convertible debt instruments by removing the
separation models for (1) convertible debt with a cash conversion feature and (2) convertible instruments with a beneficial conversion feature. Entities will
not separately present in equity an embedded conversion feature in such debt and will account for a convertible debt instrument wholly as debt, unless
certain other conditions are met. Also, ASU 2020-06 requires the application of the if-converted method for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, and the treasury stock method will be no longer available. As required, the Company plans to adopt ASU 2020-06 as of January 1, 2022 using a
modified retrospective approach and expects to record a cumulative effect adjustment of an estimated $73.0 million to increase opening retained earnings.
Due to the adoption of ASU 2020-06, the Company expects interest expense for fiscal 2022 will be lower than for fiscal 2021 by approximately
$29.0 million and expects an increase of 9.8 million for fiscal 2022 compared to fiscal 2021 in dilutive shares included in diluted weighted-average shares
of common stock outstanding for the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share. These estimates are based on the balance of 1.625% Notes and 0%
Notes outstanding as of October 1, 2021 and are subject to change depending on future repurchase or exchanges.

Note 4: Acquisition and Divestiture
Acquisition of GT Advanced Technologies Inc.

On August 25, 2021, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary Semiconductor Components Industries, LLC, entered into a definitive Agreement
and Plan of Merger to acquire GT Advanced Technologies Inc. (“GTAT”), which closed on October 28, 2021. Pursuant to the terms and subject to the
conditions set forth in the Agreement and Plan of Merger, including customary purchase price adjustments, the aggregate cash consideration the Company
paid from its cash on hand in exchange for all of the outstanding equity interests of GTAT was approximately $425 million. Due to the timing of this
acquisition, the initial accounting for the business combination is incomplete at the time of the filing of this Form 10-Q.

Divestiture

On October 1, 2021, the Company divested itself of one of its businesses along with the related intellectual property for aggregate consideration of
approximately $13.6 million and recognized a gain of $10.2 million after offsetting the carrying values of the disposed assets and liabilities. Pursuant to the
agreement governing the divestiture, the Company may receive additional cash consideration of $7.5 million if and when the divested business achieves
certain milestones.
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Note 5: Restructuring, Asset Impairments and Other, Net

Details of restructuring, asset impairments and other charges, net are as follows (in millions):

Restructuring Asset Impairments Other Total
Quarter ended October 1, 2021
2021 Involuntary Separation Program $ 1.0 $ — 3 — 3 1.0
Other — — (2.7) 2.7)
Total $ 1.0 $ — $ 27) $ (1.7)
Restructuring Asset Impairments Other Total
Nine months ended October 1, 2021
2021 Involuntary Separation Program $ 55.1 $ — 5 — 5 55.1
Other — 3.3 (0.1) 3.2
Total $ 551 $ 33 $ (0.1) $ 58.3

A summary of changes in accrued restructuring balance is as follows (in millions):

As of As of
December 31, 2020 Charges Usage October 1, 2021
Employee separation charges $ 62 $ 551 $ (46.1) $ 15.2
Total $ 62 $ 551 $ (46.1) $ 15.2

2021 Involuntary Separation Program

On March 4, 2021, as part of its ongoing efforts to realign its investments to focus on growth drivers and key markets and to streamline its operations, the
Company announced its plans to implement certain employee terminations during 2021 (the "ISP").

Under the ISP, the Company notified approximately 725 employees of their employment termination, and incurred severance costs and other benefit costs
amounting to $55.1 million during the nine months ended October 1, 2021. The severance and other benefit costs incurred during the quarter ended
October 1, 2021 related to certain insignificant adjustments to the severance costs previously recorded. Approximately $14.8 million of the incurred
charges remained accrued as of October 1, 2021, which the Company expects to pay during the fourth quarter of 2021 and the first quarter of 2022.

The Company continues to evaluate employee positions and locations for potential efficiencies and may incur additional severance and related charges in
the future.

Note 6: Balance Sheet Information and Other

Goodwill

There was an insignificant change in the balance of goodwill from December 31, 2020 to October 1, 2021 relating to the divestiture of a business. See Note
4: "Acquisition and Divestiture". Goodwill is tested for impairment annually on the first day of the fourth quarter or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances (each, a "triggering event") would more likely than not reduce the carrying value of goodwill below its fair value. Management did not
identify any triggering events during the quarter ended October 1, 2021 that would require an interim impairment analysis.
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Inventory

Details of Inventory included in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in millions):

As of
December 31,
October 1, 2021 2020
Inventories:
Raw materials $ 160.8 $ 135.7
Work in process 871.7 829.7
Finished goods 295.1 286.0
$ 1,327.6 $ 1,251.4
Defined Benefit Plans

The Company recognizes the aggregate amount of all overfunded plans as assets and the aggregate amount of all underfunded plans as liabilities in its
financial statements. As of October 1, 2021, the net assets for the overfunded plans totaled $12.5 million. The total accrued pension liability for
underfunded plans was $142.8 million, of which the current portion of $0.4 million was classified as accrued expenses and other current liabilities. As of
December 31, 2020, the net funded status for all the plans was a liability of $141.9 million, of which the current portion of $0.3 million was classified as
accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

The components of the net periodic pension expense were as follows (in millions):

Quarters Ended Nine Months Ended
October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020 October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020
Service cost $ 28 § 27 $ 89 $ 8.1
Interest cost 1.1 1.2 3.3 3.5
Expected return on plan assets (1.6) (1.6) 4.9) 4.7)
Curtailment gain (2.3) — (0.4) (1.6)
Total net periodic pension cost $ — § 23 $ 69 $ 5.3

Leases

Operating lease arrangements are comprised primarily of real estate and equipment agreements. The components of lease expense were as follows (in
millions):

Quarters Ended Nine Months Ended
October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020 October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020
Operating lease $ 98 $ 99 $ 296 $ 28.1
Variable lease 0.9 1.3 2.9 3.1
Short-term lease 0.4 1.0 1.6 3.4
Total lease expense $ 1.1 % 122§ 341§ 34.6

The lease liabilities recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows (in millions):

As of
December 31,
October 1, 2021 2020
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 324 % 32.2
Other long-term liabilities 98.3 115.7
Total lease liabilities $ 130.7 $ 147.9
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Operating right-of-use ("ROU") assets as of October 1, 2021 and December 31, 2020 amounted to $124.0 million and $136.3 million, respectively, and are
included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of October 1, 2021, the weighted-average remaining lease-term was 6.5 years and the
weighted-average discount rate was 4.8%.

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Certain of the Company's cash and non-cash activities were as follows (in millions):

Nine Months Ended
October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020

Non-cash investing activities:

Capital expenditures in accounts payable and other long-term liabilities $ 1533 $ 156.1

Divestiture/Sale of property in exchange of receivable 9.1 4.7

ROU assets obtained in exchange of lease liabilities 14.2 54.8
Cash paid for:

Interest expense $ 80.7 $ 80.9

Income taxes 65.1 29.9

Operating lease payments in operating cash flows 30.6 27.5

Reconciliation of the captions in the Consolidated Balance Sheets to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (in millions)
As of
October 1, 2021 December 31, 2020 October 2,2020 December 31, 2019

Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,389.2 $ 1,080.7 $ 1,6540 $ 894.2
Restricted cash (included in other current assets) 1.4 0.8 0.8 —
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash in Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows $ 1,390.6 $ 1,081.5 $ 1,654.8 $ 894.2
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Note 7: Long-Term Debt

The Company's long-term debt consists of the following (annualized interest rates, dollars in millions):

As of
December 31,
October 1, 2021 2020

Amended Credit Agreement:
Revolving Credit Facility due 2024, interest payable monthly at —% and 1.90%, respectively $ — % 700.0
Term Loan "B" Facility due 2026, interest payable monthly at 2.08% and 2.15%, respectively 1,602.3 1,614.5
0% Notes due 2027 805.0 —
3.875% Notes due 2028 (1) 700.0 700.0
1.625% Notes due 2023 (2) 202.6 575.0
Gross long-term debt, including current portion $ 3,309.9 $ 3,589.5
Less: Debt discount (3) (159.7) (69.7)
Less: Debt issuance costs (4) (36.7) (28.5)
Net long-term debt, including current portion $ 3,1135 $ 3,491.3
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (203.0) (531.6)
Net long-term debt $ 2,910.5 $ 2,959.7

(1) Interest is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year at 3.875% annually.

(2) Interest is payable on April 15 and October 15 of each year at 1.625% annually.

(3) Debt discount of $8.0 million and $9.0 million for the Term Loan "B" Facility, $131.5 million and zero for the 0% Notes, $6.0 million and $6.5
million for the 3.875% Notes, $14.2 million and $54.2 million for the 1.625% Notes, in each case as of October 1, 2021 and December 31, 2020,
respectively.

(4) Debt issuance costs of $18.5 million and $21.0 million for the Term Loan "B" Facility, $14.7 million and zero for the 0% Notes, $2.1 million and

$2.3 million for the 3.875% Notes and $1.4 million and $5.2 million for the 1.625% Notes, in each case as of October 1, 2021 and December 31,
2020, respectively.

Expected maturities of gross long-term debt (including current portion - see section regarding 1.625% Notes below) as of October 1, 2021 were as follows
(in millions):

Period Expected Maturities
Remainder of 2021 $ 206.8
2022 16.3
2023 16.3
2024 16.3
2025 16.3
Thereafter 3,037.9
Total $ 3,309.9

The Company was in compliance with its covenants under all debt agreements as of October 1, 2021.

0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2027

On May 19, 2021, the Company completed a private offering of $805.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 0% Notes, the proceeds of which were
used to repurchase a portion of the 1.625% Notes in privately negotiated note repurchase or exchange transactions, repay a portion of the Revolving Credit
Facility, pay the net cost of the related convertible note hedges after such costs were offset by the proceeds from the sale of warrants, and general corporate

purposes. The 0% Notes were issued under an indenture (the "0% Indenture") by and among the Company, the guarantors party thereto, and Wells Fargo
Bank, National
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Association, as trustee, which provides, among other things, that the 0% Notes will mature on May 1, 2027, unless earlier repurchased or redeemed by the
Company or converted pursuant to their terms. On or after February 1, 2027, until the close of business on the second scheduled trading day immediately
preceding May 1, 2027, holders may convert their 0% Notes at any time. The 0% Notes are the Company’s senior unsecured obligations and are fully and
unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each of the Company’s subsidiaries that is a borrower or guarantor under the Company’s
Amended Credit Agreement. The Company may satisfy any conversion elections by paying cash up to the aggregate principal amount of the 0% Notes to
be converted, and paying or delivering, as the case may be, cash, shares of common stock or a combination of cash and shares of common stock, at the
Company’s election, in respect of the remainder, if any, of its conversion obligation in excess of the aggregate principal amount of the 0% Notes to be
converted.

The initial conversion rate of the 0% Notes is 18.8796 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount, which is equivalent to an initial conversion
price of approximately $52.97 per share of common stock. The Company may redeem for cash all or any portion of the 0% Notes, at the Company’s
option, on or after May 1, 2024, if the last reported sale price of the Company’s common stock has been at least 130% of the conversion price then in effect
for at least 20 trading days during any consecutive 30 trading-day period. Prior to February 1, 2027, the holders may convert their 0% Notes under the
following circumstances: (i) during any calendar quarter commencing after the calendar quarter ending on June 30, 2021 (and only during such calendar
quarter), if the last reported sale price of the Company’s common stock for at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending
on the last trading day of the immediately preceding calendar quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price on each applicable trading
day; (ii) during the five consecutive business-day period after any five consecutive trading-day period in which the trading price per $1,000 principal
amount of the 0% Notes for each trading day of such period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of Company’s common stock
and the conversion rate on each such trading day; (iii) if the Company calls any or all of the 0% Notes for redemption, at any time prior to the close of
business on the second scheduled trading day immediately preceding the redemption date; or (iv) upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions
described in the 0% Indenture.

The conversion rate is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain specified events as set forth in the 0% Indenture. The maximum number of
shares of common stock issuable in connection with the conversion is 21.7 million. In accordance with the accounting guidance on embedded conversion
features, the Company valued and bifurcated the conversion option, representing the debt discount, from the respective host debt instrument and recorded
$139.9 million to stockholders’ equity. The Company also incurred issuance costs of $19.0 million, of which $15.7 million was capitalized as debt issuance
costs and $3.3 million was allocated to the conversion option and recorded to stockholders’ equity. The debt discount and debt issuance costs are being
amortized at an effective interest rate of 3.2% over the contractual term of the 0% Notes.

In addition, the Company entered into convertible note hedge transactions with respect to the common stock with the initial purchasers or their affiliates
("Counterparties"). The convertible note hedges cover, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments, the number of shares of common stock that initially
underlie the 0% Notes, and are expected to reduce the potential dilution to the common stock and/or offset potential cash payments in excess of the
principal amount upon conversion. The Company paid $160.3 million in cash for the convertible note hedges, which was recorded to stockholders’ equity.
The Company also entered into warrant transactions with the Counterparties, whereby the Company sold warrants to acquire, subject to anti-dilution
adjustments, the same number of shares of the Company’s common stock covered by the convertible note hedges at an initial strike price of $74.34 per
share, which represents a 100% premium over the closing price of $37.17 per share on May 11, 2021. The maximum number of shares of common stock
issuable in connection with the warrants is 30.4 million. The Company received $93.8 million in cash for the sale of warrants, which was recorded to
stockholders’ equity.

Partial exchange or repurchase and/or exchange of the 1.625% Notes

On May 11, 2021, contemporaneously with the issuance of the 0% Notes, the Company entered into separate privately negotiated transactions with certain
holders of the 1.625% Notes to repurchase or exchange, as applicable, $372.4 million in aggregate principal amount of the 1.625% Notes for a total
consideration of $506.5 million in cash and 5.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock. The repurchases and exchanges resulted in a loss on debt
prepayment of $26.2 million based on the fair value of the debt component, while the remainder of the consideration amounting to $141.6 million
attributable to the equity component was recorded to stockholders’ equity. Separately, the Company received 9.1 million shares into treasury by terminating
a portion of the convertible note hedge transactions that were originally entered at the time of issuance of the 1.625% Notes in a notional amount
corresponding to the principal amount of the 1.625% Notes repurchased or exchanged. The fair market value of these shares amounting to $339.0 million
was recorded to additional paid-in capital and treasury stock, with no overall impact to equity. Additionally, the Company terminated a portion of the
warrant transactions originally entered at the time of issuance of the 1.625% Notes and issued 6.8 million shares with respect to a number of shares of
common stock equal to the notional shares underlying such 1.625% Notes repurchased or exchanged.
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The remaining outstanding principal amount of the 1.625% Notes, amounting to $187.0 million, net of unamortized discount and issuance costs continues
to be classified as a current portion of long-term debt as of October 1, 2021. Pursuant to the indenture governing the 1.625% Notes, because the last
reported sale price of the Company’s common stock for at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on September 30,
2021 was greater than or equal to $26.94 (130% of the conversion price) on each applicable trading day, the holders have the right to surrender any portion
of their 1.625% Notes (in minimum denominations of $1,000 in principal amount or an integral multiple thereof) for conversion during the calendar quarter
ending December 31, 2021, and only during such calendar quarter.

Ninth Amendment to the Amended Credit Agreement

On May 10, 2021, in anticipation of the issuance of the 0% Notes, the Company entered into the Ninth Amendment to the Amended Credit Agreement
("Ninth Amendment"). The Ninth Amendment provided for, among other things, modifications to the Amended Credit Agreement to permit the issuance of
the 0% Notes and the repurchase or exchange of the 1.625% Notes, remove the availability of borrowings in currencies other than U.S. dollars in light of
the unavailability of LIBO Rate for such other currencies beginning December 31, 2021, provide for increased capacity to dispose of certain assets, make
investments and incur certain types of indebtedness and liens, increase the threshold for real estate properties required to be mortgaged to secure the
facility, increase the ability to incur incremental debt facilities and remove certain conditions applicable to the incurrence of incremental facilities. There
was no impact to the consolidated financial statements due to the Ninth Amendment.

Repayments under the Revolving Credit Facility

During the quarter ended July 2, 2021, the Company repaid the entire outstanding balance under the Revolving Credit Facility of $550.0 million using a
portion of the net proceeds from the issuance of the 0% Notes and cash generated from operations. During the quarter ended April 2, 2021, the Company
repaid $150.0 million of the outstanding balance under the Revolving Credit Facility using cash generated from operations. As of October 1, 2021, the
Company had approximately $1.97 billion available under the Revolving Credit Facility for future borrowings, except for amounts utilized for the letters of
credit.

Note 8: Earnings Per Share and Equity
Earnings Per Share

Net income per share of common stock attributable to ON Semiconductor Corporation is calculated as follows (in millions, except per share data):

Quarters Ended Nine Months Ended
October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020 October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020
Net income attributable to ON Semiconductor Corporation $ 309.7 $ 160.6 $ 583.7 $ 145.2
Basic weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 430.6 410.8 423.8 410.5
Dilutive effect of share-based awards 2.3 1.8 2.3 1.6
Dilutive effect of convertible notes and warrants 7.8 5.7 17.0 2.3
Diluted weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding 440.7 418.3 443.1 414.4
Net income per share of common stock attributable to ON Semiconductor
Corporation:
Basic $ 072 $ 039 $ 138 $ 0.35
Diluted $ 070 $ 0.38 $ 132 $ 0.35

Basic income per share of common stock is computed by dividing net income attributable to the Company by the weighted-average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period. To calculate the diluted weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding, the treasury stock method has
been applied to calculate the number of incremental shares from the assumed issuance of shares relating to RSUs. The excluded number of anti-dilutive
share-based awards was approximately 0.2 million and zero for the quarters ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020, respectively, and 0.4 million and
1.0 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020, respectively.
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The dilutive impact related to the 0% Notes and 1.625% Notes has been determined in accordance with the net share settlement requirements. While the
0% Notes are convertible into cash up to the par value, in accordance with their terms, the Company has assumed the 1.625% Notes to be convertible into
cash up to the par value in accordance with the existing accounting standards. The excess over par value for the 0% Notes and 1.625% Notes, if applicable,
has been assumed to be convertible into common stock. Prior to conversion, the convertible note hedges are not considered for purposes of the earnings per
share calculations, as their effect would be anti-dilutive. Upon conversion, the convertible note hedges are expected to offset the dilutive effect of the 0%
Notes and 1.625% Notes when the stock price is above $52.97 and $20.72 per share, respectively.

The dilutive impact of the warrants issued concurrently with the issuance of the 0% Notes, 1.625% Notes and 1.00% Notes with exercise prices of $74.34,
$30.70 and $25.96, respectively, has been included in the calculation of diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding, if applicable. All of the
warrants issued in connection with the 1.00% Notes were settled during the first half of 2021.

Equity
1.00% Notes Warrants Settlement

At the time of issuance of the 1.00% Notes, the Company sold 37.3 million warrants to bank counterparties whereby the holders of the warrants had the
option to purchase the equivalent number of shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $25.96 per share from the Company beginning in March
2021. During the quarters ended July 2, 2021 and April 2, 2021, the warrant holders exercised 18.6 million and 18.7 million warrants, respectively, and the
Company settled them by issuing 7.1 million and 6.3 million shares of common stock, respectively, on a net-share basis.

Share Repurchase Program

Under the Company's share repurchase program announced on November 15, 2018 (the "Share Repurchase Program"), the Company may repurchase up to
$1.5 billion (exclusive of fees, commissions and other expenses) of the Company's common stock from December 1, 2018 through December 31, 2022.

There were no repurchases during the quarters ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020 under the Share Repurchase Program. While there were no
repurchases during the nine months ended October 1, 2021, the repurchases amounted to $65.3 million during the nine months ended October 2, 2020. As
of October 1, 2021, the authorized amount remaining under the Share Repurchase Program was $1,295.8 million.

Activity under the Share Repurchase Program during the quarter and nine months ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020 was as follows (in millions,
except per share data):

Quarters Ended Nine Months Ended
October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020 October 1, 2021  October 2, 2020
Number of repurchased shares (1) = = = 3.6
Aggregate purchase price $ — 3 — 3 — 3 65.3
Fees, commissions and other expenses — — — 0.1
Total cash used for share repurchases $ — 3 — 3 — § 65.4
Weighted-average purchase price per share (2) $ — — $ — 5 18.08

(1)  None of these shares had been reissued or retired as of October 1, 2021, but may be reissued or retired at a later date.
(2)  Exclusive of fees, commissions and other expenses.

Shares for Restricted Stock Units Tax Withholding
The amounts remitted for employee withholding taxes during the quarter and nine months ended October 1, 2021 were $2.2 million and $34.2 million,
respectively, for which the Company withheld approximately 0.1 million and 0.9 million shares of common stock, respectively, that were underlying the

RSUs that vested. The amounts remitted during the quarter and nine months ended October 2, 2020 were $0.5 million and $17.1 million, respectively, for
which the Company withheld less than 0.1
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million and approximately 1.0 million shares of common stock, respectively, that were underlying the RSUs that vested. None of these shares had been
reissued or retired as of October 1, 2021, but may be reissued or retired at a later date.

Non-Controlling Interest in Leshan-Phoenix Semiconductor Company Limited (“Leshan”)

The results of Leshan have been consolidated in the Company's financial statements. As of December 31, 2020, the non-controlling interest balance was
$19.6 million and, along with the $1.1 million share of the earnings for the nine months ended October 1, 2021, increased to $20.7 million as of October 1,
2021.

Stockholders' Rights Plan

On June 7, 2020, the Company's Board of Directors authorized and declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right (a "Right") for each
outstanding share of common stock to the stockholders of record on June 18, 2020. The Rights, which continued to have a de minimis value from the time
they were issued, expired on June 7, 2021.

Note 9: Share-Based Compensation

Total share-based compensation expense related to the Company's RSUs, stock grant awards and the ESPP was recorded within the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income as follows (in millions):

Quarters Ended Nine Months Ended
October 1,
October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020 2021 October 2, 2020
Cost of revenue $ 36 $ 31 $ 11.8 $ 8.5
Research and development 5.4 4.8 18.4 13.2
Selling and marketing 3.7 34 12.5 9.5
General and administrative 10.0 6.2 314 20.0
Share-based compensation expense $ 227 % 175 $ 741 $ 51.2
Income tax benefit (4.8) (3.7) (15.6) (10.8)
Share-based compensation expense, net of taxes $ 179 $ 138 $ 58.5 § 40.4

As of October 1, 2021, total unrecognized expected share-based compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, related to non-vested RSUs with
service, performance and market conditions was $105.5 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.4 years. Upon
vesting of RSUs, stock grant awards or completion of a purchase under the ESPP, the Company issues new shares of common stock. The annualized pre-
vesting forfeiture rate for RSUs was estimated to be 6% for the quarter and nine months ended October 1, 2021 and 5% for the quarter and nine months
ended October 2, 2020.

Shares Available

On May 20, 2021, the Company's stockholders approved certain amendments to the Amended and Restated SIP to extend the expiration date from 2022 to
2031 and to increase the number of shares of common stock subject to all awards by 22.5 million, from 87.0 million to 109.5 million. On the same day, the
stockholders also approved an amendment to the ESPP, which increased the number of shares available to be issued pursuant to the ESPP by 6.0 million,
from 28.5 million to 34.5 million.

As of October 1, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there was an aggregate of 42.2 million and 16.5 million shares of common stock, respectively, available for
grant under the Amended and Restated SIP. As of October 1, 2021 and December 31, 2020, there was an aggregate of 8.4 million and 3.0 million shares of
common stock, respectively, available for issuance under the ESPP.

Restricted Stock Units

RSUs generally vest ratably over three years for awards with service conditions and over two or three years for awards with performance or market

conditions, or a combination thereof, and are settled in shares of the Company's common stock upon vesting. A summary of the RSU transactions for the
nine months ended October 1, 2021 is as follows (in millions, except per share data):
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Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair Value
Number of Shares Per Share

Non-vested RSUs at December 31, 2020 113 $ 20.73
Granted 2.4 41.26
Released (2.8) 21.40
Forfeited (4.5) 21.86
Non-vested RSUs at October 1, 2021 6.4 27.33

Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Contingencies

There are no new material environmental contingencies subsequent to the filing of the 2020 Form 10-K.
Financing Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Company provides standby letters of credit or other guarantee instruments to certain parties initiated by either the
Company or its subsidiaries, as required for transactions, including, but not limited to, material purchase commitments, agreements to mitigate collection
risk, leases, utilities or customs guarantees. As of October 1, 2021, the Company's Revolving Credit Facility included $15.0 million available for the
issuance of letters of credit. There were $0.9 million in letters of credit outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility as of October 1, 2021, which
reduced the Company's borrowing capacity. As of October 1, 2021, the Company also had outstanding guarantees and letters of credit outside of its
Revolving Credit Facility totaling $7.3 million.

As part of obtaining financing in the ordinary course of business, the Company issued guarantees related to certain of its subsidiaries, which totaled $0.9
million as of October 1, 2021.

Based on historical experience and information currently available, the Company believes that it will not be required to make payments under the standby
letters of credit or guarantee arrangements for the foreseeable future.

Indemnification Contingencies
There are no new material indemnification contingencies subsequent to the filing of the 2020 Form 10-K.
Legal Matters

The Company is currently involved in a variety of legal matters that arise in the ordinary course of business. Based on information currently available, the
Company is not involved in any pending or threatened legal proceedings that it believes could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on
its financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. The litigation process is inherently uncertain, and the Company cannot guarantee that the outcome
of any litigation matter will be favorable to the Company.

Intellectual Property Matters

The Company faces risk of exposure from claims of infringement of the IP rights of others. In the ordinary course of business, the Company receives letters
asserting that the Company’s products or components breach another party’s rights. Such letters may request royalty payments from the Company, that the
Company cease and desist using certain IP or other remedies.
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Note 11: Fair Value Measurements
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
During the quarter ended October 1, 2021, the Company began investing portions of its excess cash in different marketable securities, which are classified

as available-for-sale. The following table summarizes the Company's financial assets and liabilities, excluding pension assets, disaggregated by the security
type, measured at fair value on a recurring basis (in millions):

As of October 1, 2021 Fair Value Level
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Description Cost gains losses Fair value Level 1 Level 2
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Demand and time deposits $ 81 $ — 3 — $ 81 $ 81 $ —
Money market funds 2.3 — — 2.3 2.3 —
Corporate bonds 2.5 — — 2.5 — 2.5
Commercial paper 4.0 — — 4.0 — 4.0
Other current assets:
Corporate bonds 12.7 — — 12.7 — 12.7
Certificate of deposit 2.0 — — 2.0 — 2.0
Commercial paper 4.9 — — 4.9 2.9 2.0
US Treasury bonds 0.4 — — 0.4 — 0.4
Other assets:
Corporate bonds 19.0 — — 19.0 — 19.0
Certificate of deposit 0.5 — — 0.5 — 0.5
US Treasury bonds 1.5 — — 1.5 — 1.5

The investments included in other assets have maturity dates ranging between one and five years.

As of December 31, 2020 Fair Value Level
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Description Cost gains losses Fair value Level 1 Level 2
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Demand and time deposits $ 85 §$ — $ — $ 85 $ 85 $ —
Other

The carrying amounts of other current assets and liabilities, such as accounts receivable and accounts payable, approximate fair value based on the short-
term nature of these instruments.

22



Table of Contents
ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
(unaudited)

Fair Value of Long-Term Debt, including Current Portion

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s long-term borrowings were as follows (in millions):

As of
October 1, 2021 December 31, 2020
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Long-term debt, including current portion (1)
Convertible notes $ 845.7 $ 14431 $ 5156 $ 967.1
Other long-term debt 2,267.8 2,259.7 2,975.7 2,966.8

(1) Carrying amounts shown are net of debt discount and debt issuance costs.

The fair values of the 3.875% Notes, 1.625% Notes and 0% Notes were estimated based on market prices in active markets (Level 1). The fair value of the

Term Loan "B" Facility was estimated based on discounting the remaining principal and interest payments using current market rates for similar debt
(Level 2).

Note 12: Financial Instruments
Foreign Currencies

As a multinational business, the Company engages in transactions that are denominated in a variety of currencies. When appropriate, the Company uses
forward foreign currency contracts to reduce its overall exposure to the effects of currency fluctuations on its results of operations and cash flows. The
Company’s policy prohibits trading in currencies for which there are no underlying exposures and entering into trades for any currency to intentionally
increase the underlying exposure. The Company primarily hedges existing assets and liabilities associated with transactions currently on its balance sheet,
which are undesignated hedges for accounting purposes.

As of October 1, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company had net outstanding foreign exchange contracts with notional amounts of $301.2 million and
$263.4 million, respectively. Such contracts were obtained through financial institutions and were scheduled to mature within one to three months from the
time of purchase. Management believes that these financial instruments should not subject the Company to increased risks from foreign exchange
movements because gains and losses on these contracts should offset losses and gains on the underlying assets, liabilities and transactions to which they are
related.

The following summarizes the Company’s net foreign exchange positions in U.S. Dollars (in millions):

As of
October 1, 2021 December 31, 2020
Buy (Sell) Notional Amount Buy (Sell) Notional Amount
Euro $ 759 $ 759 $ 47.7 $ 47.7
Philippine Peso 66.8 66.8 57.2 57.2
Japanese Yen 56.2 56.2 71.2 71.2
Korean Won 36.5 36.5 34.4 34.4
Chinese Yuan 24.3 24.3 17.7 17.7
Malaysian Ringgit 14.0 14.0 11.7 11.7
Singapore Dollar 11.7 11.7 5.7 5.7
Other Currencies - Buy 9.0 9.0 6.7 6.7
Other Currencies - Sell (6.8) 6.8 (11.1) 11.1
$ 2876 $ 301.2 $ 2412 $ 263.4

Amounts receivable or payable under the contracts are included in other current assets or accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the quarters ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020,
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realized and unrealized foreign currency transactions totaled a loss of $0.8 million and a gain of $0.1 million, respectively. During the nine months ended
October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020, realized and unrealized foreign currency transactions totaled a gain of $1.5 million and a loss of $3.4 million,
respectively. The realized and unrealized foreign currency transactions are included in other income (expense) in the Company's Consolidated Statements
of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Cash Flow Hedges

All derivatives are recognized on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair value and classified based on the applicable instrument's
maturity date.

Foreign Currency Risk

The purpose of the foreign currency hedging activities is to protect the Company from the risk that the eventual cash flows resulting from transactions in
foreign currencies will be adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. During the quarter ended July 2, 2021, the Company entered into an
insignificant forward contract that is designated as a foreign currency cash flow hedge of a forecasted payment denominated in a currency other than U.S.
Dollars.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company uses interest rate swap contracts to mitigate its exposure to interest rate fluctuations. During the quarter ended July 2, 2021, the Company
entered into interest rate swap agreements for notional amounts totaling $500.0 million, effective as of December 30, 2022 and December 29, 2023, with
maturity dates of December 29, 2023 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

The Company did not identify any ineffectiveness with respect to the notional amounts of the interest rate swap contracts effective as of October 1, 2021
and October 2, 2020, amounting to $1.5 billion and $2.25 billion, respectively.

Other

As of October 1, 2021, the Company had no outstanding commodity derivatives, currency swaps or options relating to either its debt instruments or
investments. The Company does not hedge the value of its equity investments in its subsidiaries or affiliated companies. The Company is exposed to credit-
related losses if counterparties to hedge contracts fail to perform their obligations. As of October 1, 2021, the counterparties to the Company’s hedge
contracts were held at financial institutions that the Company believes to be highly-rated, and no credit-related losses are anticipated.

Note 13: Income Taxes

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in tax expense on the Company's Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Income. The Company had approximately $1.9 million and $4.7 million of net interest and penalties accrued as of October 1, 2021 and
October 2, 2020, respectively. It is reasonably possible that $43.2 million of its uncertain tax positions will be reduced in the next 12 months due to
settlement with tax authorities or expiration of the applicable statute of limitations.

The Company maintains a partial valuation allowance on its U.S. state deferred tax assets and a valuation allowance on foreign net operating losses and tax
credits in certain foreign jurisdictions, a substantial portion of which relate to Japan net operating losses, which are projected to expire prior to utilization.

Tax years prior to 2017 are generally not subject to examination by the United States Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") except for items involving tax
attributes that have been carried forward to tax years with statutes of limitations that remain open. The Company is currently under IRS examination for the
2017 tax year. For state tax returns, the Company is generally not subject to income tax examinations for tax years prior to 2016. The Company is also
subject to routine examinations by various foreign tax jurisdictions in which it operates. With respect to jurisdictions outside the United States, the
Company is generally not subject to examination for tax years prior to 2011. The Company believes that adequate provisions have been made for any
adjustments that may result from tax examinations. However, the outcome of tax audits cannot be predicted with certainty. If any issues addressed in the
Company’s tax audits are resolved in a manner not consistent with the Company's expectations, the Company could be required to adjust its provision for
income taxes in the period such resolution occurs.
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Note 14: Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Amounts comprising the Company's accumulated other comprehensive loss and reclassifications are as follows (in millions):

Currency
Translation Effects of Cash
Adjustments Flow Hedges Total
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ (40.6) $ (17.0) $ (57.6)
Other comprehensive income (loss) prior to reclassifications (2.8) 26.1 23.3
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss — (14.3) (14.3)
Net current period other comprehensive income (loss) (1) (2.8) 11.8 9.0
Balance as of October 1, 2021 $ (434 $ (52 $ (48.6)

(1) Effects of cash flow hedges are net of tax expense of $3.4 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021.

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to the specific caption within Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Income were as follows:

Amounts Reclassified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Quarters Ended Nine Months Ended
October 1, 2021  October 2, 2020 October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020 To caption
Interest rate swaps $ 49 $ 64 $ 143 $ 13.3 Interest expense
Total reclassifications $ 49 $ 64 $ 143 $ 13.3
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in conjunction with our audited historical consolidated financial statements, which are included in the 2020 Form
10-K and our unaudited consolidated financial statements for the fiscal quarter ended October 1, 2021 included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q. This
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains statements that are forward-looking. These statements
are based on current expectations and assumptions that are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors. Actual results could differ materially because
of the factors discussed below or elsewhere in this Form 10-Q. See Part II, Item 1A. "Risk Factors" of this Form 10-Q and Part I, Item 1A. "Risk Factors"
of the 2020 Form 10-K.

Executive Overview
onsemi Overview

onsemi’s mission is to push innovation to create intelligent power and sensing technologies that solve challenging customer problems. With our intelligent
power technologies, we are engaged in the electrification of the automotive industry that allows for lighter and longer-range electric vehicles, enables
efficient fast-charging systems and propels the sustainable energy evolution for efficient solar strings, industrial power and storage systems. Using our
intelligent sensing technologies, we enable the next generation industry for smarter homes, factories and buildings while also enhancing the automotive
mobility experience with imaging and depth sensing that make advanced vehicle safety and automated driving systems possible. As of October 1, 2021, we
were organized into the three operating and reportable segments of PSG, ASG and ISG.

We serve a broad base of end-user markets, including automotive, industrial, communications, computing and consumer. We believe the evolution of
automotive with advancements in autonomous driving, ADAS, vehicle electrification, and the increase in electronics content for vehicle platforms is
altering the boundaries of personal transportation. With an extensive portfolio of AEC-qualified products, onsemi enables customers to design high
reliability solutions while delivering peak performance. Within the industrial space, onsemi helps OEMs develop innovative products and navigate the
ongoing transformation across energy infrastructure, industrial automation, smart buildings and power conversion. With every processor, memory bank or
wireless base station needing power, onsemi’s computing and connectivity solutions for AC-DC conversion, multiphase conversion, point-of-load supplies,
and hot swap protection support the full power range and various functions needed to power cloud infrastructure.

Business Strategy Developments

Our primary focus continues to be on gross margin and operating margin expansion, while at the same time achieving revenue growth in our focused end-
markets of automotive, industrial and communications infrastructure as well as being opportunistic in other end-markets, including obtaining longer-term
supply arrangements with strategic end-customers. We are also focused on achieving efficiencies in our operating expenditures. While we have made
significant progress, we are continuing the process of rationalizing our product portfolio and allocated capital, research and development investments and
resources to accelerate growth in high-margin products and end-markets by moving away from non-differentiated products, which have had historically
lower gross margins. To this effect, onsemi announced in 2020 that it was exploring the sales of our six-inch fabrication facilities in Oudenaarde, Belgium
and Niigata, Japan, and we are currently engaged in discussions with potential buyers. As actions are initiated to achieve our business strategy goals, we
could incur accounting charges in the future.

We believe these actions, among others, will allow us to transition to a lighter internal fabrication model where our gross margins will be less volatile and
not as heavily influenced by our internal manufacturing volumes. We are also rationalizing our manufacturing footprint to align with our investment
priorities and corporate strategy. Our goal is to reduce volatility in our gross margins and maximize return on our manufacturing investments with the
intention of having our product strategy drive our manufacturing footprint and capital investments.

We are focused on sustainability as we drive a common theme across all markets. Recently, onsemi announced its commitment to achieving net zero
emissions and becoming carbon-neutral by 2040. As we initiate steps to achieve our sustainability goals, additional investments may be required in the
future in connection with such actions, although the timing and amounts of such investments are uncertain at this time.

In order to realign investments to focus on growth drivers and key markets and to streamline our operations and achieve efficiencies, we implemented the
ISP during the first quarter of 2021. Under the ISP, we notified approximately 725 employees of their employment termination and incurred severance
charges and other benefits of approximately $55.1 million. We
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continue to evaluate employee positions and locations for potential efficiencies and may incur additional severance and related charges in the future.
Additionally, during the second quarter of 2021, we took certain steps to rationalize our capital structure.

On October 28, 2021, we closed on our previously announced acquisition of GTAT. We believe the GTAT acquisition will act as a building block to fuel
growth and accelerate innovation in disruptive intelligent power technologies and secure and grow supply of SiC to meet rapidly growing customer demand
for SiC-based solutions in the sustainable ecosystem.

Impact of the Novel Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) Pandemic on our Business

In response to the impact of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic on our business and industry, we have proactively implemented preventative protocols,
which we continuously assess and update for current local conditions and emerging trends. These are intended to safeguard our employees, contractors,
customers, suppliers and communities and to ensure business continuity in case of further government restrictions or if severe outbreaks impact operations
at certain of our facilities. While substantially all of our global manufacturing sites are currently operational, our facilities could be required to temporarily
curtail production levels or temporarily cease operations based on government mandates in response to further outbreaks or new variants of COVID-19. We
are still unable to predict the ultimate extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact our operations.
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Results of Operations
Quarter Ended October 1, 2021 compared to the Quarter Ended October 2, 2020
The following table summarizes certain information relating to our operating results that has been derived from our unaudited consolidated financial

statements (in millions):
Quarters Ended

October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020 Dollar Change
Revenue $ 1,742.1  $ 1,317.3 $ 424.8
Cost of revenue (exclusive of amortization shown below) 1,021.3 876.1 145.2
Gross profit 720.8 441.2 279.6
Operating expenses:
Research and development 154.5 156.1 (1.6)
Selling and marketing 68.4 65.3 3.1
General and administrative 75.7 62.2 13.5
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets 24.7 29.6 4.9)
Restructuring, asset impairments and other charges, net 1.7) 9.0 (10.7)
Intangible asset impairment — — —
Total operating expenses 321.6 322.2 (0.6)
Operating income 399.2 119.0 280.2
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense (31.9) (42.2) 10.3
Interest income 0.5 0.9 0.4)
Gain on divestiture of business 10.2 — 10.2
Other income (expense) (5.8) 0.4 (6.2)
Other income (expense), net (27.0) (40.9) 13.9
Income before income taxes 372.2 78.1 294.1
Income tax (provision) benefit (61.8) 83.1 (144.9)
Net income 310.4 161.2 149.2
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 0.7) (0.6) 0.1)
Net income attributable to ON Semiconductor Corporation $ 309.7 $ 1606 $ 149.1
Revenue

Revenue was $1,742.1 million and $1,317.3 million for the quarters ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020, respectively, representing an increase of
$424.8 million, or approximately 32%. We had one customer, a distributor, whose purchases accounted for approximately 14% of our total revenue for the
quarter ended October 1, 2021.

Revenue by operating and reportable segments was as follows (dollars in millions):

Quarter Ended October As a % of Quarter Ended October As a % of
1, 2021 Total Revenue ¥ 2, 2020 Total Revenue ¥
PSG $ 892.1 51.2% $ 647.4 49.1 %
ASG 613.5 35.2 % 494.6 37.5%
ISG 236.5 13.6 % 175.3 13.3 %
Total revenue $ 1,742.1 $ 1,317.3

(1) Certain amounts may not total due to rounding of individual amounts.

Revenue from PSG increased by $244.7 million, or approximately 38%, for the quarter ended October 1, 2021 compared to the quarter ended October 2,
2020. The revenue from our Advanced Power Division and our Integrated Circuits, Protection and
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Signal Division increased by $154.1 million and $88.0 million, respectively, due to the improving economic conditions resulting in significantly increased
demand for our products and an increase in average selling prices compared to the quarter ended October 2, 2020.

Revenue from ASG increased by $118.9 million, or approximately 24%, for the quarter ended October 1, 2021 compared to the quarter ended October 2,
2020. The revenue from our Mobile, Computing and Cloud Division, Industrial Solutions Division, and Automotive Division increased by $58.4 million,
$33.6 million and $29.9 million, respectively. The increases were primarily due to significantly improved economic conditions, which drove up demand for
our products in other end-markets along with an increase in average selling prices.

Revenue from ISG increased by $61.2 million, or approximately 35%, for the quarter ended October 1, 2021 compared to the quarter ended October 2,
2020. The revenue from our Automotive Sensing Division and Industrial and Consumer Solutions Division increased by $46.8 million and $34.2 million,
respectively, and was partially offset by a decrease of $19.8 million from our exited CCD Division. The increases were due to the significant improvement
of economic conditions, specifically with automotive component manufacturers and the automotive industry overall, resulting in increased demand for
these products along with an increase in average selling prices.

Revenue by geographic location, based on sales billed from the respective country or regions, was as follows (dollars in millions):

Quarter Ended As a % of Quarter Ended October As a % of

October 1, 2021 Total Revenue ¥ 2, 2020 Total Revenue ¥
Singapore $ 544.0 312% $ 441.9 33.5 %
Hong Kong 487.0 28.0 % 334.5 254 %
United Kingdom 273.2 15.7 % 206.8 15.7 %
United States 238.7 13.7 % 187.6 14.2 %
Other 199.2 11.4 % 146.5 11.1 %

Total revenue $ 1,742.1 $ 1,317.3

(1) Certain amounts may not total due to rounding of individual amounts.
Gross Profit and Gross Margin (exclusive of amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets)

Our gross profit by operating and reportable segments was as follows (dollars in millions):

Quarter Ended As a % of Quarter Ended October As a % of
October 1, 2021 Segment Revenue 2,2020?® Segment Revenue
PSG $ 346.0 388% $ 194.2 30.0 %
ASG 280.1 45.7 % 191.2 38.7 %
ISG 94.7 40.0 % 55.8 31.8 %
Total gross profit $ 720.8 414% $ 441.2 33.5 %

(1) Certain amounts may not total due to rounding of individual amounts.

(2) Beginning in the first quarter of 2021, unallocated manufacturing costs were included as part of segment operating results to determine segment
gross profit. As a result, the prior-period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current-period presentation.

Our gross profit increased by $279.6 million, or approximately 63%, from $441.2 million for the quarter ended October 2, 2020 to $720.8 million for the
quarter ended October 1, 2021. Our overall gross margin increased to approximately 41% for the quarter ended October 1, 2021 from approximately 34%
for the quarter ended October 2, 2020.

The favorable economic environment and significant improvement in demand in all end-markets and specifically from automotive component
manufacturers and the automotive industry overall contributed to increased demand and better pricing for many of our products. The increase in gross
profit and gross margin was due to a significant increase in sales volume, increased utilization and a better mix in the portfolio of products sold combined
with an increase in average selling prices for many of our products.
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Operating Expenses
Research and development expenses were $154.5 million for the quarter ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $156.1 million for the quarter ended
October 2, 2020, representing a decrease of $1.6 million, or approximately 1%. The decrease in payroll expenses and costs associated with third-party

consultants was partially offset by an increase in variable compensation.

Selling and marketing expenses were $68.4 million for the quarter ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $65.3 million for the quarter ended October 2,
2020, representing an increase of $3.1 million, or approximately 5%. The increase was primarily due to the increase in variable compensation.

General and administrative expenses were $75.7 million for the quarter ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $62.2 million for the quarter ended
October 2, 2020, representing an increase of $13.5 million, or approximately 22%. The increase was primarily due to the increase in variable and stock
compensation.

Other Operating Expenses

Amortization of Acquisition-Related Intangible Assets

Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets was $24.7 million for the quarter ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $29.6 million for the quarter
ended October 2, 2020, representing a decrease of $4.9 million, or approximately 17%. The decrease was primarily due to full amortization of certain of
our technology-related assets during 2020.

Restructuring, Asset Impairments and Other, Net

Restructuring, asset impairments and other, net was a credit of $1.7 million for the quarter ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $9.0 million for the
quarter ended October 2, 2020. The expenses related to the ISP during the third quarter of 2021 and the involuntary separation program during the third
quarter of 2020. For additional information, see Note 5: "Restructuring, Asset Impairments and Other, Net" in the notes to our unaudited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $10.3 million to $31.9 million during the quarter ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $42.2 million during the quarter
ended October 2, 2020. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in our long-term debt. Our average gross long-term debt balance (including current
maturities) for the quarter ended October 1, 2021 was $3,311.9 million at a weighted-average interest rate of 3.9%, as compared to $4,601.0 million at a
weighted-average interest rate of 3.7% for the quarter ended October 2, 2020.

Gain on Divestiture of Business

Gain on divestiture of business was $10.2 million during the quarter ended October 1, 2021, as compared to zero for the quarter ended October 2, 2020, due
to the divestiture of a business entity engaged in research and development. See Note 4: "Acquisition and Divestiture" in the notes to our unaudited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q for additional information.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) decreased by $6.2 million from an income of $0.4 million during the quarter ended October 2, 2020 to an expense of $5.8 million
during the quarter ended October 1, 2021. The decrease was primarily due to the expense relating to the valuation adjustment on employee benefit plans.

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit

We recorded an income tax provision of $61.8 million and a benefit of $83.1 million during the quarters ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020,
respectively.

The income tax provision for the quarter ended October 1, 2021 consisted primarily of $64.7 million for income and withholding taxes of certain of our
foreign and domestic operations, partially offset by discrete benefits of $0.4 million relating
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to the release of reserves and interest for uncertain tax positions in foreign jurisdictions for which the statute has lapsed, $0.2 million relating to net equity
award windfalls, and $2.3 million of other discrete benefits primarily related to return to provision adjustments.

The income tax benefit for the quarter ended October 2, 2020 consisted of discrete benefits of $60.4 million primarily due to the recognition of certain
deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, related to the domestication of certain foreign subsidiaries and a benefit of $49.9 million related to the
release of valuation allowances against certain state deferred tax assets. These benefits were partially offset by a provision of $23.0 million for income and
withholding taxes of certain of our foreign and domestic operations, a $3.1 million discrete provision related to prior year uncertain tax positions and $1.1
million of other discrete items.

For additional information, see Note 13: "Income Taxes" in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-

Q.

Results of Operations

Nine Months Ended October 1, 2021 compared to the Nine Months Ended October 2, 2020

The following table summarizes certain information relating to our operating results that has been derived from our unaudited consolidated financial

statements (in millions):
Nine Months Ended

October 1, 2021 October 2, 2020 Dollar Change
Revenue $ 4,893.7 $ 3,808.7 $ 1,085.0
Cost of revenue (exclusive of amortization shown below) 3,011.6 2,590.5 421.1
Gross profit 1,882.1 1,218.2 663.9
Operating expenses:
Research and development 494.4 483.2 11.2
Selling and marketing 223.4 207.7 15.7
General and administrative 221.3 196.3 25.0
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets 74.5 91.0 (16.5)
Restructuring, asset impairments and other charges, net 58.3 58.0 0.3
Intangible asset impairment 2.9 1.3 1.6
Total operating expenses 1,074.8 1,037.5 37.3
Operating income 807.3 180.7 626.6
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense (98.4) (126.6) 28.2
Interest income 11 4.3 3.2)
Loss on debt refinancing and prepayment (26.2) — (26.2)
Gain on divestiture of business 10.2 — 10.2
Other income (expense) 2.4) (2.3) (0.1)
Other income (expense), net (115.7) (124.6) 8.9
Income before income taxes 691.6 56.1 635.5
Income tax benefit (provision) (106.8) 90.5 (197.3)
Net income 584.8 146.6 438.2
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interest (1.1) (1.4) 0.3
Net income attributable to ON Semiconductor Corporation $ 583.7 $ 1452 $ 438.5
Revenue

Revenue was $4,893.7 million and $3,808.7 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 and nine months ended October 2, 2020, respectively,
representing an increase of $1,085.0 million, or 28.5%. We had one customer, a distributor, whose purchases accounted for approximately 13% of our total
revenue for the nine months ended October 1, 2021.

31



Table of Contents

Revenue by operating and reportable segments was as follows (dollars in millions):

Nine Months Ended As a % of Nine Months Ended As a % of
October 1, 2021 Total Revenue ¥ October 2, 2020 Total Revenue ¥
PSG $ 2,485.7 50.8% $ 1,889.7 49.6 %
ASG 1,752.6 35.8 % 1,388.4 36.5 %
ISG 655.4 13.4 % 530.6 13.9 %
Total revenue $ 4,893.7 $ 3,808.7

(1) Certain amounts may not total due to rounding of individual amounts.

Revenue from PSG increased by $596.0 million, or approximately 32%, for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 compared to the nine months ended
October 2, 2020. The revenue from our Advanced Power Division and Integrated Circuits, Protection and Signal Division increased by $369.6 million and
$228.4 million, respectively. These increases were primarily driven by better economic conditions resulting in increased demand for our products along
with a favorable mix in the products sold and an increase in average selling prices. During the first nine months of 2020, we experienced decreased
demand, delays in fulfilling certain customer orders due to significant supply chain constraints and certain of our factories operating at significantly
reduced capacity levels as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, neither of which were experienced during 2021.

Revenue from ASG increased by $364.2 million, or approximately 26%, for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 compared to the nine months ended
October 2, 2020. The revenue from our Mobile, Computing and Cloud Division, Automotive Division and Industrial Solutions Division increased by
$186.5 million, $122.7 million and $67.1 million, respectively. The increases were primarily due to significantly improved economic conditions resulting in
increased demand for our products in other end-markets along with a favorable mix in the products sold and an increase in average selling prices. Also
during the first nine months of 2020, we experienced decreased demand, delays in fulfilling certain customer orders due to significant supply chain
constraints and certain of our factories operating at significantly reduced capacity levels as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, neither of which were
experienced during 2021.

Revenue from ISG increased by $124.8 million, or approximately 24%, for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 compared to the nine months ended
October 2, 2020. The revenue from our Automotive Solutions Division and Industrial and Consumer Solutions Division increased by $97.6 million and
$70.3 million, respectively, and was partially offset by a decrease of $43.3 million from the exited CCD business. The increase in revenue was due to the
significant improvement in economic conditions, specifically with automotive component manufacturers and the automotive industry overall, resulting in
increased demand for these products along with a favorable mix in the products sold and an increase in average selling prices.

Revenue by geographic location, including local sales made by operations within each area, based on sales billed from the respective region, was as follows
(dollars in millions):

Nine Months Ended As a % of Nine Months Ended As a % of
October 1, 2021 Total Revenue October 2, 2020 Total Revenue
Singapore $ 1,586.0 324% $ 1,289.6 33.9 %
Hong Kong 1,278.5 26.1 % 974.0 25.6 %
United Kingdom 818.6 16.7 % 574.7 15.1 %
United States 648.6 13.3 % 523.9 13.8 %
Other 562.0 11.5 % 446.5 11.7 %
Total revenue $ 4,893.7 $ 3,808.7

(1) Certain amounts may not total due to rounding of individual amounts.
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Gross Profit and Gross Margin (exclusive of amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets described below)

Our gross profit by operating and reportable segments was as follows (dollars in millions):

Nine Months Ended As a % of Nine Months Ended As a % of
October 1, 2021 Segment Revenue October 2, 2020 @ Segment Revenue
PSG $ 906.8 36.5% $ 549.2 29.1 %
ASG 739.2 42.2 % 500.4 36.0 %
ISG 236.1 36.0 % 168.6 31.8 %
Total gross profit $ 1,882.1 385% $ 1,218.2 32.0 %

(1) Certain amounts may not total due to rounding of individual amounts.
(2) Beginning in the first quarter of 2021, unallocated manufacturing costs were included as part of segment operating results to determine segment
gross profit. As a result, the prior-period amounts have been reclassified to conform to current-period presentation.

Our gross profit was $1,882.1 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 compared to $1,218.2 million for the nine months ended October 2, 2020.
Gross profit increased by $663.9 million, or approximately 54%. Gross profit as a percentage of revenue increased to approximately 38% for the nine
months ended October 1, 2021 from approximately 32% for the nine months ended October 2, 2020.

The significant increase in gross profit and gross margin was due to a significant increase in sales volume, increased utilization and a better mix in the
portfolio of the products sold combined with an increase in average selling prices for many of our products. The favorable economic environment and
significant improvement in demand in all end-markets and specifically from automotive component manufacturers and the automotive industry overall
contributed to increased demand and better pricing for our products.

Operating Expenses
Research and development expenses were $494.4 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $483.2 million for the nine months
ended October 2, 2020, representing an increase of $11.2 million, or approximately 2%. The increase was primarily due to an increase in variable

compensation.

Selling and marketing expenses were $223.4 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $207.7 million for the nine months ended
October 2, 2020, representing an increase of $15.7 million, or approximately 8%. The increase was primarily due to an increase in variable compensation.

General and administrative expenses were $221.3 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $196.3 million for the nine months
ended October 2, 2020, representing an increase of $25.0 million, or approximately 13%. The increase was primarily due to an increase in variable and
stock compensation.

Other Operating Expenses

Amortization of Acquisition-Related Intangible Assets

Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets was $74.5 million and $91.0 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 and nine months
ended October 2, 2020, respectively, representing a decrease of $16.5 million, or approximately 18%. The decrease was primarily due to full amortization
of certain of our technology-related assets during 2020.

Restructuring, Asset Impairments and Other, Net

Restructuring, asset impairments and other, net was $58.3 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $58.0 million for the nine

months ended October 2, 2020, representing an increase of $0.3 million. For additional information, see Note 5: "Restructuring, Asset Impairments and
Other, Net" in the notes to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $28.2 million to $98.4 million during the nine months ended October 1, 2021, as compared to $126.6 million during the nine
months ended October 2, 2020. The decrease was primarily due to decrease in long-term debt and interest rates during this period. Our average gross long-
term debt balance (including current maturities) for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 was $3,449.7 million at a weighted-average interest rate of
3.8%, as compared to $4,049.0 million at a weighted-average interest rate of 4.2% for the nine months ended October 2, 2020.

Loss on Debt Refinancing and Prepayment

Loss on debt refinancing and prepayment relating to the partial repurchase or exchange of the 1.625% Notes was $26.2 million for the nine months ended
October 1, 2021, as compared to zero for the nine months ended October 2, 2020.

Gain on Divestiture of a Business

Gain on divestiture of a business was $10.2 million during the nine months ended October 1, 2021, as compared to zero for the nine months ended
October 2, 2020, due to the divestiture of a business entity engaged in research and development during the quarter ended October 1, 2021. See Note 4:
"Acquisition and Divestiture" in the notes to our unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q for additional
information.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) was an expense of $2.4 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 as compared to an expense of $2.3 million for the nine
months ended October 2, 2020. The fluctuations in foreign currencies resulting in increased transaction gains was offset by the valuation adjustment on
employee benefit plans.

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit

We recorded an income tax provision of $106.8 million and a benefit of $90.5 million during the nine months ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020,
respectively.

The income tax provision for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 consisted primarily of $118.6 million for income and withholding taxes of certain of
our foreign and domestic operations and $3.9 million related to a discrete foreign tax rate change, partially offset by discrete benefits of $7.3 million
relating to uncertain tax positions in foreign jurisdictions for which the statute has lapsed, $5.5 million relating to net equity award windfalls and
$2.9 million of other discrete benefits primarily related to return to provision adjustments.

The income tax benefit for the nine months ended October 2, 2020 consisted primarily of a benefit of $60.4 million due to the recognition of certain
deferred tax assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, related to the domestication of certain foreign subsidiaries and a benefit of $49.9 million related to the
release of valuation allowances against certain state deferred tax assets. These benefits were partially offset by a provision of $15.5 million for income and
withholding taxes of certain of our foreign and domestic operations, a $3.3 million discrete provision relating to prior year uncertain tax positions and
$1.0 million of other discrete items.

For additional information, see Note 13: "Income Taxes" in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-

Q.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

This section includes a discussion and analysis of our cash requirements, off-balance sheet arrangements, contingencies, sources and uses of cash,
operations, working capital and long-term assets and liabilities.

Contractual Obligations

As of October 1, 2021, there were no material changes outside the ordinary course of business to our contractual obligations table, including the notes
thereto, contained in the 2020 Form 10-K.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
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In the ordinary course of business, we provide standby letters of credit or other guarantee instruments to certain parties in connection with certain
transactions, including, but not limited to: material purchase commitments, agreements to mitigate collection risk, leases, utilities or customs guarantees.
As of October 1, 2021, our Revolving Credit Facility included $15.0 million of commitment for the issuance of letters of credit subject to the available
balance of the Revolving Credit Facility. There were $0.9 million letters of credit outstanding under our Revolving Credit Facility as of October 1, 2021,
which reduced our borrowing capacity dollar-for-dollar. As of October 1, 2021, we also had outstanding guarantees and letters of credit outside of our
Revolving Credit Facility in the amount of $7.3 million.

As part of securing financing in the ordinary course of business, we have issued guarantees related to certain of our subsidiaries, which totaled $0.9 million
as of October 1, 2021. Based on historical experience and information currently available, we believe that we will not be required to make payments under
the standby letters of credit or guarantee arrangements for the foreseeable future.

We have not recorded any liability in connection with these letters of credit and guarantee arrangements. See Note 7: "Long-Term Debt" and Note 10:
"Commitments and Contingencies" in the notes to our unaudited consolidated financial statements found elsewhere in this Form 10-Q for additional
information.

Contingencies

We are a party to a variety of agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business pursuant to which we may be obligated to indemnify other parties
for certain liabilities that arise out of or relate to the subject matter of the agreements. Some of the agreements entered into by us require us to indemnify
the other parties against losses due to IP infringement, environmental contamination and other property damage, personal injury, our failure to comply with
applicable laws, our negligence or willful misconduct or our breach of representations, warranties or covenants related to such matters as title to sold assets.

We face risk of exposure to warranty and product liability claims in the event that our products fail to perform as expected or such failure of our products
results, or is alleged to result, in economic damage, bodily injury or property damage. In addition, if any of our designed products are alleged to be
defective, we may be required to participate in their recall. Depending on the significance of any particular customer and other relevant factors, we may
agree to provide more favorable rights to such customer for valid defective product claims.

We maintain directors’ and officers’ insurance policies that indemnify our directors and officers against various liabilities, including certain liabilities under
the Exchange Act, that might be incurred by any director or officer in his or her capacity as such. We continue to carry indemnification and insurance
agreements in favor of directors, officers and employees of Fairchild and Quantenna.

While our future obligations under certain agreements may contain limitations on liability for indemnification, other agreements do not contain such
limitations, and under such agreements, it is not possible to predict the maximum potential amount of future payments due to the conditional nature of our
obligations and the unique facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement. Historically, payments made by us under any of these
indemnities have not had a material effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, and we do not believe that any amounts
that we may be required to pay under these indemnities in the future will be material to our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash
flows.

See Note 10: "Commitments and Contingencies" in the notes to our unaudited consolidated financial statements under the heading "Legal Matters" included
elsewhere in this Form 10-Q for possible contingencies related to legal matters. See also Part I, Item 1 "Business - Government Regulation" of the 2020
Form 10-K for information on certain environmental matters.

Sources and Uses of Cash
Our balance of cash and cash equivalents was $1,389.2 million as of October 1, 2021. We require cash to: (i) fund our operating expenses, working capital
requirements, outlays for strategic acquisitions and investments; (ii) service our debt, including principal and interest; (iii) conduct research and

development; (iv) make capital expenditures; and (v) repurchase our common stock.

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash on hand, cash generated from operations, funds from external borrowings and equity issuances. In the near term,
we expect to fund our primary cash requirements through cash generated from operations and with cash and cash equivalents on hand. We also have the
ability to utilize our Revolving Credit Facility, which has approximately $1.97 billion available for future borrowings.
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We believe that the key factors that could affect our internal and external sources of cash include:

. Geopolitical and macroeconomic factors caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, which has had, and is expected to continue to have,
negative impacts on the economies of the majority of countries and industries. The ultimate effect of the COVID-19 pandemic and its
variants and the responses of various governmental entities and industries thereto, the duration and severity and the possibility of the re-
emergence of the pandemic in future months and the anticipated recovery period are uncertain.

. Factors that affect our results of operations and cash flows include the impact on our business and operations as a result of changes in
demand for our products, including as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, competitive pricing pressures, supply chain constraints,
effective management of our manufacturing capacity, our ability to achieve further reductions in operating expenses, our ability to make
progress on the achievement of our business strategy and sustainability goals, the impact of our restructuring programs on our production
and cost efficiency and our ability to make the research and development expenditures required to remain competitive in our business.

. Factors that affect our access to bank financing and the debt and equity capital markets that could impair our ability to obtain needed
financing on acceptable terms or to respond to business opportunities and developments as they arise include interest rate fluctuations,
macroeconomic conditions (including as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic), sudden reductions in the general availability of lending
from banks or the related increase in cost to obtain bank financing and our ability to maintain compliance with covenants under our debt
agreements in effect from time to time.

Our ability to service our long-term debt, including the 0% Notes, 3.875% Notes, 1.625% Notes, the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan "B"
Facility, to remain in compliance with the various covenants contained in our debt agreements and to fund working capital, capital expenditures and
business development efforts will depend on our ability to generate cash from operating activities, which is subject to, among other things, our future
operating performance and the timing of the full economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory
and other conditions, some or all of which may be beyond our control.

If we fail to generate sufficient cash from operations, we may need to raise additional equity or borrow additional funds to achieve our longer-term
objectives. There can be no assurance that such equity or borrowings will be available when we access the capital markets or, if available, will be at rates or
prices acceptable to us.

During the ordinary course of business, we evaluate our cash requirements and, if necessary, adjust our expenditures for inventory, operating expenditures
and capital expenditures to reflect the current market conditions and our projected sales and demand. Our capital expenditures are primarily directed
towards manufacturing equipment, and can materially influence our available cash for other initiatives. During the nine months ended October 1, 2021 and
October 2, 2020, we paid $275.0 million and $267.2 million, respectively, for capital expenditures. Our current minimum contractual capital expenditure
commitment for the remainder of 2021 is approximately $168.2 million. Our estimated purchases of property, plant and equipment are expected to be 6% to
7% of revenue on an annualized basis for 2021. Future capital expenditures may be impacted by events and transactions that are not currently forecasted.

Primary Cash Flow Sources

Our long-term cash generation is dependent on the ability of our operations to generate cash. Our cash flows from operating activities were $1,155.4
million and $483.9 million for the nine months ended October 1, 2021 and October 2, 2020, respectively. The increase of $671.5 million was primarily
attributable to a significant increase in net income due to better economic conditions resulting in increased demand for our products and better working
capital management. Our ability to maintain positive operating cash flows is dependent on, among other factors, our success in achieving our revenue goals
and manufacturing and operating cost targets. Management of our assets and liabilities, including both working capital and long-term assets and liabilities,
also influences our operating cash flows, and each of these components is discussed below.

Working Capital

Working capital, calculated as total current assets less total current liabilities, fluctuates depending on end-market demand and our effective management of
certain items such as receivables, inventory and payables. Our working capital, excluding cash and cash equivalents and the current portion of long-term
debt, was $1,011.5 million as of October 1, 2021, and has fluctuated between $1,057.1 million and $885.0 million at the end of each of our last eight fiscal
quarters. Our working capital, including cash and cash equivalents and the current portion of long-term debt, was $2,197.7 million as of October 1, 2021,
and has
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fluctuated between $2,379.8 million and $1,201.6 million at the end of each of our last eight fiscal quarters. The significant fluctuation was due to the
withdrawal and repayment on our Revolving Credit Facility during 2020 as well as the reclassification of the 1.625% Notes as a current liability. We expect
an increase in capital expenditures during 2022 and also expect to pay a significant portion of the remaining severance obligations incurred in connection
with the ISP during the fourth quarter of 2021 and the first quarter of 2022.

Long-Term Assets and Liabilities

Our long-term assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, deferred taxes and goodwill. Our manufacturing rationalization
plans have included efforts to utilize our existing manufacturing assets and supply arrangements more efficiently. We have taken certain measures to add
manufacturing capacity with the closure of the GTAT acquisition on October 28, 2021 and in connection with the expected completion of the acquisition of
the East Fishkill, New York fabrication facilities and certain related assets and liabilities on or around December 31, 2022.

Our long-term liabilities, excluding long-term debt and deferred taxes, consist of liabilities under our foreign defined benefit pension plans, operating lease
liabilities and contingent tax reserves. With regard to our foreign defined benefit pension plans, our annual funding of these obligations is equal to the
minimum amount legally required in each jurisdiction in which the plans operate. This annual amount is dependent upon numerous actuarial assumptions.
For additional information, see Note 6: "Balance Sheet Information and Other" and Note 13: "Income Taxes" in the notes to our unaudited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q.

Key Financing and Capital Events
Overview

Over the past several years, we have undertaken various measures to secure liquidity to pursue acquisitions, repurchase shares of our common stock, reduce
interest costs, amend existing key financing arrangements and, in some cases, extend a portion of our debt maturities to continue to provide us additional
operating and financial flexibility. During the nine ended October 1, 2021, we executed the Ninth Amendment, issued our 0% Notes, repurchased or
exchanged a significant portion of the 1.625% Notes and repaid the remaining outstanding balance on our Revolving Credit Facility.

Cash Management

Our ability to manage cash is limited, as our primary cash inflows and outflows are dictated by the terms of our sales and supply agreements, contractual
obligations, debt instruments and legal and regulatory requirements. While we have some flexibility with respect to the timing of capital equipment
purchases, we must invest in capital equipment on a timely basis to allow us to maintain our manufacturing efficiency and support our platforms for new
products.

Debt Guarantees and Related Covenants

As of October 1, 2021, we were in compliance with the indentures relating to our 0% Notes, 3.875% Notes and 1.625% Notes and with covenants relating
to our Term Loan "B" Facility and Revolving Credit Facility. The 0% Notes, 3.875% Notes and 1.625% Notes are senior to the existing and future
subordinated indebtedness of onsemi and its guarantor subsidiaries, rank equally in right of payment to all of our existing and future senior debt and, as
unsecured obligations, are subordinated to all of our existing and future secured debt to the extent of the assets securing such debt.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements, see our 2020 Form 10-K and Note 3: "Recent Accounting Pronouncements" in the notes to our
unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. To mitigate these risks, we utilize
derivative financial instruments. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

As of October 1, 2021, our gross long-term debt (including current maturities) totaled $3,309.9 million. While we do not have interest rate exposure to rate
changes on our fixed-rate debt, which totaled $3,207.6 million as of October 1, 2021, $102.3
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million of our variable interest rate debt is subject to interest rate exposure. A 50 basis point increase in interest rates would impact our expected annual
interest expense for the next 12 months by approximately $3.3 million. However, some of this impact would be offset by additional interest earned on our
cash and cash equivalents should rates on deposits and investments also increase. Our interest rate swaps hedge a significant portion of the risk of
variability in cash flows resulting from future interest payments on our variable interest rate debt.

While we observed stabilization in the capital markets impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, including in connection with our recent debt transactions,
there can be no assurance that equity or borrowings will be available when we access the capital markets again or, if available, will be at rates or prices
acceptable to us.

To ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of our foreign exchange hedge positions, we continually monitor our foreign exchange forward positions, both on
a stand-alone basis and in conjunction with their underlying foreign currency exposures, from an accounting and economic perspective. However, given the
inherent limitations of forecasting and the anticipatory nature of exposures intended to be hedged, we cannot provide any assurances that such programs
will offset more than a portion of the adverse financial impact resulting from unfavorable movements in foreign exchange rates.

We are subject to risks associated with transactions that are denominated in currencies other than our functional currencies, as well as the effects of
translating amounts denominated in a foreign currency to the U.S. Dollar as a normal part of the reporting process. Some of our Japanese operations utilize
Japanese Yen as the functional currency, which results in a translation adjustment that is included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income.

We enter into forward foreign currency contracts that economically hedge the gains and losses generated by the re-measurement of certain recorded assets
and liabilities in a non-functional currency. Changes in the fair value of these undesignated hedges are recognized in other income (expense) immediately
as an offset to the changes in the fair value of the assets or liabilities being hedged. The notional amount of foreign exchange contracts as of October 1,
2021 and December 31, 2020 was $301.2 million and $263.4 million, respectively. Our policies prohibit speculation on financial instruments, trading in
currencies for which there are no underlying exposures or entering into trades for any currency to intentionally increase the underlying exposure.

Substantially all of our revenue is transacted in U.S. Dollars. However, a significant amount of our operating expenditures and capital purchases are
transacted in local currencies, including Chinese Renminbi, Czech Koruna, Euros, Japanese Yen, Korean Won, Malaysian Ringgit, Philippine Peso and
Vietnamese Dong. Due to the materiality of our transactions in these local currencies, our results are impacted by changes in currency exchange rates
measured against the U.S. Dollar. For example, we determined that based on a hypothetical weighted-average change of 10% in currency exchange rates,
our results would have impacted our income before taxes by approximately $111.4 million as of October 1, 2021, assuming no offsetting hedge position or
correlated activities.

See Note 12: "Financial Instruments" in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q for further
information with respect to our hedging activity.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act). Based
upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered in this report, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the required time periods and is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We also carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of changes to our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that
occurred during the fiscal quarter ended October 1, 2021.
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There have been no changes to our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) that occurred
during the fiscal quarter ended October 1, 2021 which have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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PART II: OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

See Note 10: "Commitments and Contingencies" under the heading "Legal Matters" in the notes to the consolidated unaudited financial statements included
elsewhere in this Form 10-Q for additional information on our legal proceedings and related matters. See also Part I, Item 1 "Business - Government
Regulation" of the 2020 Form 10-K for information on certain environmental matters.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business, financial condition and results of operations are subject to a number of trends, risks and uncertainties. We review and, where applicable,
update our risk factors each quarter. There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in Part I, Item 1A of the 2020 Form 10-K, except
for the below.

Compliance with regulations regarding the use of “conflict minerals” could limit the supply and increase the cost of certain raw materials used in
manufacturing our products, create additional compliance costs and create reputational challenges.

The SEC, as mandated by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, adopted disclosure regulations for public companies
that manufacture products containing certain minerals that are mined from the Democratic Republic of Congo and adjoining countries and procedures
pertaining to a manufacturer’s efforts regarding the source of such minerals. These "conflict minerals" are commonly found in metals used in the
manufacture of semiconductors. Manufacturers are also required to disclose their efforts to prevent the sourcing of such minerals and metals produced from
them. Compliance with these requirements could adversely affect the sourcing, availability and pricing of metals used in the manufacture of our products
and may be time consuming for our management and supply chain personnel. In addition, we have incurred, and in the future may incur, additional costs to
comply with the disclosure requirements, including costs related to determining the source of any of the relevant minerals used in our products, submitting
a conflict minerals report and the audit of such report by an independent auditor. If we determine that certain of our products contain materials not
determined to be conflict free or if we are unable to verify with sufficient accuracy the origins of all conflict materials used in our products, we may face
difficulties in satisfying customers who may require that our products be certified as free of "conflict materials," which could harm our relationships with
these customers, and other reputational challenges, which could lead to a loss of revenue.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes "forward-looking statements," as that term is defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of
the Exchange Act. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included or incorporated in this Form 10-Q could be deemed forward-looking
statements, particularly statements about our plans, strategies and prospects under the heading "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations." Forward-looking statements are often characterized by the use of words such as "believes," "estimates," "expects,"
"projects,” "may," "will," "intends," "plans" or "anticipates," or by discussions of strategy, plans or intentions. All forward-looking statements in this Form
10-Q are made based on our current expectations, forecasts, estimates and assumptions and involve risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause
results or events to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Certain factors that could affect our future results or events are
described under Part I, Item 1A "Risk Factors" in the 2020 Form 10-K, in this Form 10-Q and from time to time in our other SEC reports. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. We assume no obligation to update such information, except as may be required by
law. You should carefully consider the trends, risks and uncertainties described in those reports and subsequent reports filed with or furnished to the SEC
before making any investment decision with respect to our securities. If any of the following trends, risks or uncertainties actually occurs or continues, our
business, financial condition or operating results could be materially adversely affected, the trading prices of our securities could decline and you could lose
all or part of your investment. All forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by
this cautionary statement.

non

non "o
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

The following table provides information regarding repurchases of our common stock during the quarter ended October 1, 2021:
Total Number of

Shares P;lrcl;)ai.seld as Appll;oximal:e Dollar val;)le of
- ol Nomber o AYeraBPrice ) Announced Plans or  Purchased Under the Pans or
eriod ( Programs Programs (in millions) ($)
July 3, 2021 - July 30, 2021 — — — 1,295.8
July 31, 2021 - August 27, 2021 7,303 45.06 — 1,295.8
August 28, 2021 - October 1, 2021 42,209 44.99 — 1,295.8
Total 49,512 45.00 —

(1) These time periods represent our fiscal month start and end dates for the third quarter of 2021.
(2) The number of shares purchased represents shares of common stock held by employees who tendered owned shares of common stock to the
Company to satisfy the employee withholding taxes due upon the vesting of RSUs.

(3) The price per share is based on the fair market value at the time of tender, repurchase or exercise of outstanding put options, respectively.
Share Repurchase Program
Under the Share Repurchase Program, we may repurchase up to $1.5 billion (exclusive of fees, commissions and other expenses) of our common stock
from December 1, 2018 through December 31, 2022, subject to certain contingencies. Subject to the discretion of our board of directors, we may
repurchase our common stock from time to time in privately negotiated transactions or open market transactions, including pursuant to a trading plan in
accordance with Rule 10b5-1 and Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, and the timing of any repurchases and the actual number of shares repurchased depend
on a variety of factors, including our stock price, corporate and regulatory requirements, restrictions under our debt obligations and other market and
economic conditions. There were no shares repurchased under the Share Repurchase Program during the quarter ended October 1, 2021.
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

None.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No.

2.1

3.1

10.1
31.1

31.2

32

101.INS

101.SCH

101.CAL

101.DEF

101.LAB

101.PRE

104

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description”

equityholder representative (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on August 25, 2021).1

Certificate of Elimination of Series B Junior Participating Preferred Stock of ON Semiconductor Corporation (incorporated by

Form of Voting and Support Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on August 25, 2021).

Certification by CEO pursuant to Rule 13(a)-14(a)_or 15d-14(a)_of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(1).

of 2002(2).
XBRL Instance Document(1)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document(1)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document(1)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document(1)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document(1)

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document(1)

Cover Page Interactive Data File - the cover page XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

Reports filed under the Exchange Act (Form 10-K, Form 10-Q and Form 8-K) are filed under File No. 000-30419 and File No. 001-39317.

The Company has omitted certain schedules and exhibits pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K and, upon request by the Commission, agrees
T to furnish supplementally to the Commission a copy of any omitted schedule or exhibit.

@ Filed herewith.

@ Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

ON SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
(Registrant)

Date: November 1, 2021 By: /s/ THAD TRENT
Thad Trent
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

(Principal Financial Officer and officer duly authorized to sign this
report)

By: /s/ BERNARD R. COLPITTS, JR.
Bernard R. Colpitts, Jr.
Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer and officer duly authorized to sign this
report)
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, Hassane El-Khoury, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of ON Semiconductor Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 1, 2021 /sl HASSANE EL-KHOURY
Hassane El-Khoury

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Thad Trent, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of ON Semiconductor Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 1, 2021 /s/ THAD TRENT
Thad Trent
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32

Certification

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

For purposes of Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, each of the undersigned officers of ON Semiconductor Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”),
does hereby certify, to such officer’s knowledge, that:

The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 1, 2021 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) and information contained
in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: November 1, 2021 /s/ HASSANE EL-KHOURY
Hassane El-Khoury
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: November 1, 2021 /s/ THAD TRENT
Thad Trent
Executive Vice President,

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer



